
 
 

Senior Officer and Appointments 
Staffing Sub-Committee 
 

Date: Tuesday, 5 December 2023 
Time: 
 

11.00 a.m. 

Venue: Committee Room 1 - Birkenhead Town Hall 

 
 
Contact Officer: Christine Morley 
Tel: 0151 336 3420 
e-mail: christinemorley@wirral.gov.uk 
Website: www.wirral.gov.uk 
 

 

 
AGENDA 
 
1. WELCOME AND INTRODUCTION  
 
2. APOLOGIES  
 
3. MEMBERS' CODE OF CONDUCT - DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
 Members are asked to consider whether they have any disclosable 

pecuniary interests and/or any other relevant interest in connection 
with any item(s) on this agenda and, if so, to declare them and state 
the nature of the interest. 
 

4. MINUTES (Pages 1 - 2) 
 

Please note that public seating is limited therefore members of the public 
are encouraged to arrive in good time. 
 
Wirral Council is fully committed to equalities and our obligations under 
The Equality Act 2010 and Public Sector Equality Duty. If you have any 
adjustments that would help you attend or participate at this meeting, 
please let us know as soon as possible and we would be happy to 
facilitate where possible. Please contact committeeservices@wirral.gov.uk  
 

Public Document Pack

mailto:committeeservices@wirral.gov.uk


 To approve the accuracy of the minutes of the meeting held on 17 July 
2023. 
 

5. PUBLIC AND MEMBERS QUESTIONS  
 
 5.1 Public Questions 

 
  Notice of question to be given in writing or by email by 12 

noon, Thursday 30 November 2023 to the Council’s 
Monitoring Officer via this link: Public Question Form and to 
be dealt with in accordance with Standing Order 10.  
 
For more information on how your personal information will be 
used, please see this link: Document Data Protection Protocol 
for Public Speakers at Committees | Wirral Council  
 
Please telephone the Committee Services Officer if you have 
not received an acknowledgement of your question by the 
deadline for submission. 
 

 5.2 Statements and Petitions 
 

  Statements 
 
Notice of representations to be given in writing or by email by 
12 noon, Thursday 30 November 2023 to the Council’s 
Monitoring Officer (committeeservices@wirral.gov.uk) and to 
be dealt with in accordance with Standing Order 11.1.  
 
Petitions 
 
Petitions may be presented to the Committee if provided to 
Democratic and Member Services no later than 10 working 
days before the meeting, at the discretion of the Chair. The 
person presenting the petition will be allowed to address the 
meeting briefly (not exceeding three minute) to outline the 
aims of the petition. The Chair will refer the matter to another 
appropriate body of the Council within whose terms of 
reference it falls without discussion, unless a relevant item 
appears elsewhere on the Agenda. If a petition contains more 
than 5,000 signatures, it will be debated at a subsequent 
meeting of Council for up to 15 minutes, at the discretion of 
the Mayor.  
 
Please telephone the Committee Services Officer if you have 
not received an acknowledgement of your statement/petition 
by the deadline for submission. 
 

 5.3 Questions by Members 
 

  Questions by Members to dealt with in accordance with 
Standing Orders 12.3 to 12.8. 
 

https://forms.office.com/r/H1WT279VSq
https://democracy.wirral.gov.uk/ecSDDisplay.aspx?NAME=Data%20Protection%20Protocol%20for%20Public%20Speakers%20at%20Co&ID=1298&RPID=517238898
https://democracy.wirral.gov.uk/ecSDDisplay.aspx?NAME=Data%20Protection%20Protocol%20for%20Public%20Speakers%20at%20Co&ID=1298&RPID=517238898
mailto:committeeservices@wirral.gov.uk


6. WORKFORCE EQUALITY REPORT 2023 (Pages 3 - 30) 
 
7. GENDER PAY GAP REPORT 2023 (Pages 31 - 42) 
 
 The PDF file may not be suitable to view for people with disabilities, 

users of assistive technology or mobile phone devices. Please contact 
tonywilliams@wirral.gov.uk if you would like this document in an 
accessible format. 
 

8. EXEMPT INFORMATION - EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND 
PUBLIC  

 
 The following item contains exempt information.  

 
RECOMMENDATION – That in accordance with section 100A (4) of 
the Local Government Act 1972, the public be excluded from the 
meeting during consideration of the following item of business, on the 
grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as 
defined by paragraph 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A (as amended) to 
that Act. The public interest test has been applied and favours 
exclusion. 
 

9. CHIEF OFFICER STRUCTURE UPDATE REPORT (Pages 43 - 76) 
 
Senior Officer and Appointments Staffing Sub-Committee Terms of 
Reference 
 
  

Senior Officer Appointments & Staffing Sub-Committee  
 
(a) A Sub-Committee of members of the Policy and Resources, with 
delegated authority to recommend or make appointments and related 
matters in respect of chief officers, as set out at Part 4(7) of the 
Constitution, together with oversight of employment policies, terms and 
conditions.  
 
(b) The Sub-Committee will not be appointed in accordance with the 
political balance rules (minute 8(1) of 2020/21 refers) but will consist 
of: 
 
(i) the Leader (Chair of Policy & Resources Committee), or in their 

absence the Deputy Leader (Vice-Chair), who shall chair the 
Sub-Committee; 
 

(ii)  a member from each of the other Political Groups represented 
on the Policy & Resources Committee; and (iii) the Chair, or in 
their absence the Vice-Chair, of the Policy & Services 
Committee with terms of reference most closely associated 
with the post concerned (or if that committee concerned is 
deemed to be the Policy & Resources Committee then the 
Deputy Leader (Vice-Chair). 

 
 

mailto:tonywilliams@wirral.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



SENIOR OFFICER AND APPOINTMENTS STAFFING 
SUB-COMMITTEE 

 
Monday, 17 July 2023 

 
Present: Councillor J Robinson (Chair) 

 
 Councillors L Rennie 

L Grey 
P Gilchrist 
J  Bird 

 
1 WELCOME AND INTRODUCTION  

 
The Chair welcomed everybody to the meeting. 
 

2 APOLOGIES  
 
Apologies for absence had been received from Councillor Pat Cleary. 
Councillor Jo Bird was substitute.  
 

3 MEMBERS' CODE OF CONDUCT - DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
Members of the Sub Committee were asked to declare any disclosable  
pecuniary and non-pecuniary interests, in connection with any item on the  
agenda and state the nature of the interest. 
 
No declarations were made. 
 

4 MINUTES  
 
Resolved – That the minutes of the meeting held on 15 March 2023 be 
approved as an accurate record. 
 

5 EXEMPT INFORMATION - EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC  
 
Resolved – That in accordance with section 100A (4) of the Local 
Government Act 1972, the public be excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of the following item of business, on the grounds that it 
involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined by 
paragraph 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A (as amended) to that Act. The 
public interest test has been applied and favours exclusion. 
 

6 APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTOR OF NEIGHBOURHOODS  
 
The Panel interviewed the short-listed candidates for the post of Director of 
Neighbourhood Services. 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 4



On a motion by Councillor Jean Robinson, Seconded by Councillor Liz Grey, 
It was: 
 
Resolved – That Jason Gooding be appointed to the post of Director of 
Neighbourhood Services. 
 
 

Page 2



1 
 

 

SENIOR OFFICER APPOINTMENT AND STAFFING SUB- COMMITTEE  

5 December 2023 

REPORT TITLE ANNUAL WORKFORCE EQUALITY REPORT 2022/23 

REPORT OF DIRECTOR OF RESOURCES 

 
REPORT SUMMARY 
 
This report provides Senior Officer Appointment and Staffing Sub-Committee with the 
annual Workforce Equality Report for 2022/23. 
 
In addition, it also provides Senior Officer Appointment and Staffing Sub-Committee with 
an update in relation to actions outlined in the action plan in terms of progress made since 
last year for information. This report covers all Wirral wards and is an integral part of Wirral 
Plan’s inequalities agenda. This matter is not a key decision. 
 
 

RECOMMENDATION/S 
 
Senior Officer Appointment and Staffing Sub-Committee is recommended to: 
 

1) approve publication of the annual Workforce Equality report to meet the 
legal requirements under the Public Sector Equality Duty (PSED) 2011. 
 
2) note the position in relation to workforce equality performance and the 
progress made by the Council in relation to producing, analysing and 
publishing workforce data.  
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 6



2 
 

 

1.0 REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to ensure the Council meet the legal requirements 

under the Public Sector Equality Duty (PSED) 2011. 
 

2.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
 
2.1 The PSED sets out the framework for producing, analysing and publishing 

workforce data. Therefore, no other options can be considered. 
 

3.0 BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
  
3.1 The Equality Act 2010 came into force in October 2010. The general duty of the 

Equality Act 2010 has three goals: 
  

• To eliminate any unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation 
• To advance equality of opportunity 
• To foster good relations between different groups of people. 

 
3.2 The Workforce Equality Report for 2021/22 is provided at Appendix 1. 
 
3.3 Policy and Resources Committee were previously presented with a detailed annual 

Workforce Equality Report in March 2023. 
 
4.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
4.1 There are no direct financial implications as a result of this report.  
 
5.0  LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
5.1 The public sector equality duty came in to force in April 2011 (s.149 of the Equality 

Act 2010) and public authorities like ours are required, in carrying out our functions, 
to have due regard to the need to achieve the objectives set out under s149 of the 
Equality Act 2010 to: 

 
a) eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct that is 

prohibited by or under the Equality Act 2010. 
 

b) advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic and persons who do not share it. 

 
c) foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic 

and persons who do not share it. 
 

This report reflects this as set out in the Public Sector Equality Duty (PSED) 2011 
and our commitment to meet the above objectives. 
 
To ensure transparency, and to assist in the performance of this duty, the Equality 
Act 2010 (Specific Duties) Regulations 2011 require public authorities, to publish: 

 
a) equality objectives, at least every four years  
b) information to demonstrate their compliance with the public sector equality duty 

Page 4



3 
 

 
This report provides information relating to our employees that enables us to 
measure progress and identify priority areas and action. It shows how we carry out 
our statutory duty in this respect. 

 
6.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: ICT, STAFFING AND ASSETS 
 
6.1  The are no direct resource implications as a direct result of this report.  

 
7.0 RELEVANT RISKS 
 
7.1  Non-compliance with the Equality Act 2010 and PSED April 2011.  
 
8.0  ENGAGEMENT/CONSULTATION  
 

8.1 The annual Workforce Equality report forms part of the work plan of HR / OD and is 
the basis of the governance arrangements for workforce equality.  

 
8.2 The insight, findings and progress on actions within the report are shared with 

Trade Union colleagues.  
 

9.0 EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS 
 

9.1 The annual Workforce Equality Report and action plan aim to reduce equality data 
gaps and form part of our legal requirements under the PSED April 2011.    
 

10.  ENVIRONMENT AND CLIMATE IMPLICATIONS 
  
10.1 The content and/or recommendations contained within this report are expected to 
have no impact on emissions of Greenhouse Gases. 

 
11. COMMUNITY WEALTH BUILDING 
  
11.1 There are no direct community wealth building implications arising from this report. 
 
 
REPORT AUTHOR: Maxine Joynson 

 Learning and Inclusion Officer (Equality, Diversity and Inclusion)  
  telephone:  0151 691 8165 
  email:   maxinejoynson@wirral.gov.uk 
APPENDICES 

1) Workforce Equality report 2022/23 

 
TERMS OF REFERENCE 
 
The matter is being considered by the Senior Officer Appointment and Staffing Sub-
Committee in accordance with section 1.5(a) of the Terms of Reference ‘A Sub-Committee 
of members of the Policy and Resources, with delegated authority to recommend or make 
appointments and related matters in respect of chief officers, as set out at Part 4(7) of the 
Constitution, together with oversight of employment policies, terms and conditions.’ 
 

Page 5

mailto:maxinejoynson@wirral.gov.uk


4 
 

      BACKGROUND PAPERS 

The information contained within the core monitoring report has been extracted from 
the HR data collection system and the Employee relations data collection system. 
As the information relates to staff, this is confidential as it may contain personal 
details about employees. 

This report builds on the previous Workforce Monitoring report for 2021/22 and 
provides updated information and trend analysis across all areas. 

SUBJECT HISTORY (last three years) 

Council meeting Date 

 

Policy and Resources Committee 

Senior Officer and Appointments Staffing Sub-Committee  

Policy and Resources Committee 

 

 

15 March 2023 
 
25 April 2022 
 
17 March 2021 
 
 
 

                   

Page 6



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Workforce Monitoring Report 

2022 – 2023 

 

 

 

Page 7



 

2 
 

 

(Mandarin) 

Page 8



 

3 
 

Contents 

Foreword          4 

1. Executive summary        5 

 

1.1 Key finding and actions           5   

1.2 What we have achieved to date          7 

1.3 Next steps        9 

 

2. Workforce profile         9 

3. Organisational composition       10  

4. Equality monitoring information          10  

5. Employment practice          14  

 

Appendix one:  Equality improvement: summary action plan     20 

Appendix two: Workforce profiling: Equal pay statement  21 

Appendix three: Workforce profiling: Gender pay gap reporting  22 

Appendix four: Reference list      23 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Foreword 

Page 9



 

4 
 

 
Our purpose is to create equity for people and place and opportunities for all to 
secure the best possible future for our residents, communities and businesses.  We 
know that this can only be achieved through and with our people. 
 
I’m proud of the work we’re doing with our people, our staff inclusion forum and our 
eleven staff groups and networks to build an inclusive workplace. This work to date 
clearly demonstrates our continuing commitment to developing a culture which 
respects individuals, appreciates difference and allows everyone regardless of 
background to reach their full potential.  Positively supporting our people regardless 
of gender, age, race, religion, marital status, sexual orientation, pregnancy/maternity, 
gender identity, gender reassignment, disability and caring responsibility. 
 
This is the responsibility of every single person across our organisation and this 
report helps us to challenge ourselves to see situations through different lenses to 
recognise barriers that people may face. 
 
The Public Sector Equality Duty helps public authorities like ours to consider how our 
policies or decisions affect people, including our employees, who have a protected 
characteristic under the Equality Act, which are:  

 Age 

 Disability 

 Gender reassignment 

 Marriage and civil partnership 

 Pregnancy and maternity 

 Race 

 Religion or belief 

 Sex 

 Sexual orientation 
 
I’m pleased to publish our Workforce Equality Report for 2022-2023, which provides 
equalities information on our workforce in accordance with the Equality Act (2010) 
and Public Sector Equality Duty (2011).  
 
This report helps us to monitor our progress and performance in respect of workforce 
equalities and gives us insight to engage with our people to identify improvements 
that can be made and to address imbalances between those who share a protected 
characteristic and those who do not.  It includes key achievements in the past year 
and our actions for future years to enable us to improve equality outcomes and to 
ensure we remain an inclusive employer.   
 
 
 
 
 
Paul Satoor  
Chief Executive Wirral Council 

1. Executive Summary  
 

Page 10



 

5 
 

This report draws upon the key findings and actions from analysis of our workforce 
data in 2022-2023* as required by the Public Sector Equality Duty. 
 
The data we collect and what we do with the information is detailed in the council’s 
Workforce Monitoring Policy.  All comparable datasets contained within this report 
relate to Wirral population figures taken from the Census 2021, and annual 
population survey 2022 datasets. 
 
* The publication of the analysis of our workforce data for 2023-2024 will be brought 
forward to September 2024. 
 
1.1. Summary Findings  

 
 We continue to be one the largest employers in the borough with 77% of our 

people living locally. Whilst this is a decrease of 3% from the previous year it 
reverses the trend of a 4% increase from previous years. 

 
 Our workforce demographic remains relatively stable with a headcount of 3,358. 

An increase of 38 from last year. Given a number of TUPE in and out of the 
organisation (including 168 employees who TUPE in from another organisation). 

 
It is important to note this headcount may vary from other published reports e.g., 
our Gender Pay Gap report, due to statistical requirements and data extract date 
requirements.    

 
 We have continued to take steps to increase our people’s confidence in providing 

equalities information through awareness raising campaigns and direct 
communication.   96% of our people have provided information regarding their 
protected characteristics, including people who declared that they would ‘prefer 
not to say (PNTS). Whilst this is a decrease of 3% from the previous year this is 
likely to be because of the number of TUPE. 
 
We will closely monitor this in the coming year and continue to strengthen our 
people’s confidence in providing this information. However, recognising and 
respect that the provision of such information is a personal and optional choice 
for our people. 

 
 For some protected characteristics, the proportion of our people who declared 

they would ‘prefer not to say’ remains higher than for others. Most notably: 
 

o 21% of our people indicated they would ‘prefer not to say’ in respect of 
sexual orientation. 

o 23% of our people indicated they would ‘prefer not to say’ in respect to 
religion and belief.  

 
Whilst we have narrowed the data gaps overall in the last two years, these 
figures remain the same from last year. The reasons for this are unknown and it 
may be our people feel this is personal information that they do not wish to share 
with their employer. We will continue to explore this, invite our people’s views and 
continue to build our people’s confidence, as outlined above. 

Page 11



 

6 
 

 
 Like other local government organisations our workforce is ageing, with 60% of 

our people aged 46 years and over. This is the same as last year and a reverse 
in trend from the previous year.   
 
Whilst we continue to support the needs of an ageing workforce, we are also 
taking steps to strengthen our approach to address the challenges of an ageing 
workforce. We are currently developing our new talent strategy launching in 
summer 2023. 
 
The strategy has three themes, that when delivered together will help us attract, 
develop and retain talent so we - have the right people, with the right skills and 
behaviours at the right time to meet our challenges and make the most of the 
opportunities we will face over the coming years. 
 
We know that talent is everywhere in our organisation so we are taking an 
‘inclusive’ rather than ‘exclusive’ approach to talent development where everyone 
will have equal opportunity to think, create, learn, grow, network, progress and 
thrive. 
 

 64% of our workforce is female, of which 30% are within the 46-55 age group. 
We know that this age group is most likely to be experiencing perimenopause or 
menopause and are more likely to have caring responsibilities. In recognition of 
this we have: 

 
o Staff network groups for women, menstrual health, working carers and 

perimenopause / menopause. 
o A ‘Menopause in the Workplace’ guidance that also takes account of trans 

men and non-binary staff who experience the menopause and menstrual 
health, supported by a series of employee workshops. 

o A menopause related absence category for recording menopause-related 
absences.  

o A Working Carers Policy with associated training for managers. 
o A Carer’s Passport Scheme.  
 

 3% of our workforce identify as being from an ethnic minority background, which 
is comparable to the previous year, but lower compared to 7.6% of the Wirral 
population (an increase of 2.2% from the last census).  Whilst this is a similar 
trend across the Liverpool City Region (LCR) we are working with our LCR 
partners to improve this.  There is a growing representation at Chief Officer level, 
an increase of 2.6% to 6% from last year. 
 
In addition, a commitment within our new talent strategy is to continue to 
strengthen our engagement with ethnic minority community groups to ensure our 
selection processes are inclusive. Including developing a range of early 
opportunity talent pipelines, and relationships with partners, that support and give 
a real chance for those furthest removed from employment and those under-
represented within our workforce to join us. 
 

Page 12



 

7 
 

 8% of our people declared a disability, compared with 10.6% of the population. 
The number declared has broadly remained the same over the last 3 years within 
the Council. 16% (an increase of 3% since last year) of our people have 
‘preferred not to say’ in respect of this protected characteristic.  We will continue 
to take steps to close the gap by increasing our people’s confidence to enable 
people to feel more confident in declaring a disability to ensure we can support 
them in the workplace.  
 
We are a Disability Confident employer and are committed to advancing 
opportunities for disabled candidates. With prospective disabled candidates 
automatically guaranteed an interview providing they have met the essential 
criteria for a role.  Since last year we have reversed the trend - the success rate 
of disabled candidates appointed in the last 12 months is the same than non-
disabled candidates.  10% of successful candidates preferred not to say, which 
may have some bearing on the overall rates.  
 
We will continue to strengthen our commitment to hosting supported internships 
that support and give a real chance for those furthest removed from employment 
to join us. 

 
 We have an overall healthy approach to workforce management when we 

consider the range and depth of activity and actions outlined in this report ranging 
from employment practices like performance management, disciplinary, 
attendance management etc. to internal promotion, apprenticeship and graduate 
schemes and staff engagement. 
 
Whilst we hold data in relation to our employment practices e.g., exit interviews, 
staff survey etc. it has previously been limited by the type, range and methods of 
collection. We have implemented an improved approach to enhance our ability to 
collect, identify, understand and act on insights, hotspots, barriers and 
opportunities. 

 
1.2. What We Have Achieved this year (2022/23) 
 
During the reporting period we have: 
 
 Undertaken our annual organisation wide staff survey.  Over 50% (1,663 staff) 

responded, which helped us gain insight on ‘what we do well’; ‘what matters most 
to staff’; and ‘how we can work together to make Wirral an even better place to 
work’.  
 
Undertaken our ‘We Are Wirral’ events with our workforce to continue the 
conversation from the staff survey insights with the aim to describe who we are 
and what we are like at our best.  We held feedback sessions to ensure what we 
thought we had heard was right. Alongside this, our Chief Executive met teams 
across our diverse workspaces. 

 
Using all the insight and data gathered we have launched a revised People 
Strategy in Spring 2022. This was co-designed and developed with all our 

Page 13



 

8 
 

workforce and staff groups.  Equality, diversity and inclusion runs through the 
whole strategy. 

 
 Our Inclusion Forum (made up of representatives from all our Staff Network 

groups) has evolved since 2021-2022. It has gained greater recognition within the 
organisation and influences strategic decision making. 

 
 This year the forum has: 

 
o Played a key role in the design of our new council office building to ensure 

the building is as inclusive as possible including gender neutral facilities, 
separate prayer rooms, provision for quite areas, breastfeeding expressing 
facilities, appropriate lighting / colours for our neurodiverse colleagues etc. 

o Co-designed and reviewed key HR & OD strategy, policies and processes, 
including the people strategy, talent strategy, staff survey, hybrid working 
policy. 

o Led staff awareness and engagement campaigns, including international 
women's day; men's health week; black history month, Pride; and national 
inclusion week.  

o A learning sub-group from our Inclusion Group was formed to review, 
update and refresh our essential equality, diversity and inclusion learning 
module for all staff and managers which is now live. 

 
 The number of staff network groups has grown, and we now have 12.  We will 

continue to support and encourage more networks and groups as required.  The 
new network groups established this reporting year are: 
 

o Menstrual Health,  
o Hidden Disabilities,  
o Young Persons, and  
o Parenting.  

 

Page 14



 

9 
 

 The staff network groups have also supported the development of staff learning 
programmes, including cultural awareness module; and gender identity module.  
 

 In conjunction with other councils within the Liverpool City Region, we have 
developed and introduced the first phase of our EmbRACE training programme 
for our whole workforce.  This is part of the regions commitment to tackle 
systemic injustice and inequality and drive forward positive change for our Black, 
Asian and Minority Ethnic employees and residents.  The full rollout of this 
programme will be from 2022 until 2024 and reach 17,000 employees. 

 
 Hosted the Liverpool City Region’s RISE network.  

 
 Made provision for gender neutral facilities to be made available at our main 

council office, Cheshire Lines and several of our libraries.  
 

The information contained within the report provides useful insight on our workforce 
composition and helps us to consider the impact of our employment policies and 
procedures. An action plan supporting our wider people strategy has been 
developed which can be seen in Appendix One. 
 

2. Workforce Profile  
 
This report provides data on our workforce profile for 2022-2023.  We collect, 
publish* and monitor our people’s diversity data in order to: 
 
 Check how representative we are according to the local population, wherever 

possible. 
 Consider and review the impact of our employment policies and processes, 

including the identification of areas which appear to have a disproportionate 
impact on certain groups of employees. 

 Show ‘due regard’ to the Public Sector Equality Duty, a legal requirement under 
the Equality Act 2010. 

 Identify opportunities to further embed Equality, Diversity and Inclusion in the 
workplace, so that all our people feel included, listened to, supported and 
developed to reach their full potential.  

 
* The publication of the analysis of our workforce data for 2023-2024 will be brought 
forward to September 2024. 
 
 

3. Organisational Composition  
 
As of 1 April 2023, our: 
 
 Total headcount equalled 3,358.  
 Total employees working full time equalled 2,311. 
 Total employees working part-time equalled 1,047 (of which 80% are women).  

 
These figures do not include school employees, councillors, consultants or agency 
staff (unless they have line management responsibilities).  

Page 15



 

10 
 

 
In terms of length of service, we have 269 employees with up to 1 years’ service 
(7.9%), 923 with between 1-5 years’ (27.3%), 418 with 6–10 years (12.3%), 898 with 
11 – 20 years (26.5%) and 877 with 20+ years (25.9%). 
 
Overall, there has been no significant changes to the demographic of our workforce 
over the last three years. We remain female dominated, have an ageing workforce 
and are under-representative of our ethnic minority communities. The average length 
of service is 25 years plus, a strength echoed in our recent Local Government 
Association Peer Review.  
 

4. Equality Monitoring Information  
 

4.1. Age  
 

 Like other local government organisations our workforce is ageing, with 60% of our 
people aged 46 years and over. This remains the same as last year.  
 

o Employee level 60% 
o Manager level 67% 
o Senior manager and chief officer level 83% 

 
 Around 33% of our overall workforce are aged over 55. In comparison to the local 

population which stands at 42.5% 
 

 Around 30% of our female workforce are aged between 46-55 years. When we look 
at the local population, this is 7% 

 
 We are 19% overrepresented in the 51–60 age bracket and 9% under-represented in 

the 16-25 age bracket in comparison to the latest census data. 
 

 Whilst we continue to support the needs of an ageing workforce, we are also taking 
steps to strengthen our approach to address the challenges of an ageing workforce. 
We are currently developing our new talent strategy launching in summer 2023. 

 
The strategy has three themes, that when delivered together will help us attract, 
develop and retain talent so we - have the right people, with the right skills and 
behaviours at the right time to meet our challenges and make the most of the 
opportunities we will face over the coming years. 

 
We know that talent is everywhere in our organisation so we are taking an ‘inclusive’ 
rather than ‘exclusive’ approach to talent development where everyone will have 
equal opportunity to think, create, learn, grow, network, progress and thrive. 

 
4.2. Sex 

 
 We have a predominantly female workforce (almost two thirds) which remains 

consistent over previous years. 
 

Page 16



 

11 
 

 At assistant director and chief officer level the male / female split of 54% / 46% 
remains relatively even. 
 

 In relation to pay, women are continuing to maintain representation at assistant 
director / chief officer level.  

 
 At manager and senior manager level, the male / female split of 39% men / 61% 

women shows an increase of female representation of 19% from last year (when 
previously there was a decrease of 2%) 

 
 

4.3. Ethnicity 
 

 The response rate from our people declaring their ethnicity has remained the same. 
 

 3% of our people identifying as being from an ethnic minority background compared 
to 7.6% of the Wirral population. Matching a trend across the Liverpool City Region. 
However, there is a growing representation of 6% at Chief Officer level, an increase 
of 2.6% from last year. 
 

 Comparisons have been made across the Liverpool City Region with Liverpool 
having the highest ethnic minority employee representation at 5.9% (with ethnic 
minority population of 16%). 

 
 We will continue to work with the Liverpool City Region Race Equality Forum to 

support and develop appropriate interventions.  We have developed a Race, 
Religion and Belief staff network group in respect of the race equality agenda across 
the region. 

 
In addition, a commitment within our new talent strategy is to continue to strengthen 
our engagement with ethnic minority community groups to ensure our selection 
processes are inclusive. Including developing a range of early opportunity talent 
pipelines, and relationships with partners, that support and give a real chance for 
those furthest removed from employment and those under-represented within our 
workforce to join us. 
 

4.4. Disability  
 

 Disabled employees are well represented across the entire workforce. Around 8% of 
the workforce declared they have a disability; this is in keeping with the previous 
three years. With hidden disabilities being more prevalent, particularly mental health 
since and during Covid.  
 

 Around 16% of our people have ‘preferred not to say’ in respect of this protected 
characteristic (which is an increase of 3% from the previous year) therefore we will 
continue take steps to close the gap by increasing our people’s confidence to enable 
people to feel more confident in declaring a disability to ensure we can support them 
in the workplace. 

 

Page 17



 

12 
 

 There is limited directly comparable data for this characteristic in respect of the local 
population. However, it is useful to note that in the Census 2021, 10.6% of the Wirral 
population declared they experience a long-term health problem or disability that 
limits their day-to-day activity. This may suggest we are potentially underrepresented 
in comparison to the local population but there is insufficient comparable data to be 
certain. 

 
 There were 17 requests for reasonable adjustments for specialist software. In 

addition, to TextHelp that all of our people can access we provided 3 of our people 
with additional software Dragon. 
 

 A variety of other support measures such as specialist headsets and keyboards, 
sit/stand desks and chairs, specialist footrests etc were provided to 53 of our people.  

 
Please note these are in relation to access to work requests via Health and Safety.  
Figures may be higher where managers have sourced and procured equipment from 
their own budget which are not recorded centrally. This could be an additional 20%. 

 
 Wirral’s Disability Population Employment rate is 55% compared to Wirral’s 

Population rate of 76.9% (working age 16 – 64). 
 

4.5. Religion Or Belief 
 

 There has been a slight increase in our people declaring their religion or belief, which 
is positive and suggests that our confidence campaigns have been successful and 
will be continued.  
 

 The proportion of ‘unknown/prefer not to say’ for this characteristic is still relatively 
higher than for most other protected characteristics at 23%, reducing by 2% over the 
last 2 years. The reason for this is unclear and will be considered further.  

 
4.6. Gender Reassignment 

 
 The number of our people declaring they are transgendered has remained the same 

as last year at 0.27%. 
 

 For the first time, gender reassignment has been included in the Census, therefore 
we have comparable data. Around 0.4% (955) were all other gender identities, 
including non-binary, trans woman, trans man. However, this has caused some 
concern within the LGBTQ+ community as non-binary relates to a person’s gender 
identity and is not associated with gender reassignment. 

 
 The ‘unknown’ category for this protected characteristic has increased by 4% since 

last year (which is a reverse in trend from the previous 2 years). We have a Gender 
Identity policy which was first introduced in 2009, but further steps are being taken to 
increase our people’s confidence in providing information in relation to this protected 
characteristic.  
 

4.7. Marriage And Civil Partnership  
 

Page 18



 

13 
 

 There has been a slight decrease in the number of recorded civil partnerships and 
same-sex marriages since last year, which is a reverse in trend from the previous 
two years.    
 

 There has been a slight decrease from 6.93% to 6.7% of prefer not to say in this 
category. However, it is important to recognise and respect that the provision of such 
information is a personal and optional choice for our people.   
 

4.8. Sexual Orientation  
 

 The latest Census data tell us that 90.7% of the population identify as heterosexual, 
2.9% identify as LGBTQ+, with a further 6.5% of unknown responses. 
 

 In comparison to the workforce, we are well represented at 3.3%. 
 

 There has been an increase in the number of our people declaring their sexual 
orientation at 3.3% (from 3% last year) including prefer to self-describe.  
 

 The proportion of our people providing information regarding their sexual orientation 
has increased by just under 3% over the last two years, which is positive.  
 

 However, the proportion of our people who have indicated they would ‘prefer not to 
say’ is still relatively higher than for most other protected characteristics at 21%. The 
reasons are unknown, and we have updated self-serve to include pansexual and 
prefer to self-describe to be as inclusive as possible.  Again, steps will be taken to 
increase our people’s confidence in providing information regarding protected 
characteristics and more inclusive options available for our people to identify with. 

 
4.9. Pregnancy, Maternity and Adoption 

 
 In 2022-23, 36 of our people took maternity leave. 4 of these employees left the 

organisation before they were due to return. 
 

 No employees accessed the work life balance scheme to reduce their working 
pattern within six months of returning.  

 
 No one took paternity leave or shared parental leave. However, 2 members of staff 

identifying as male, accessed Maternity support leave. 
 

 In 2022–23, we introduced hybrid working following changes made to working 
arrangements during Covid. We are investigating if this has negated the need for our 
people to submit more formal flexible working requests. We will put systems in place 
to analyse flexible working requests to monitor whether there are any decisions 
being taken that directly impact our people returning to the workforce following 
maternity. 
 

5. Employment Practice 
 

Page 19



 

14 
 

 The number of our people participating in the council carer passport scheme is 257, 
an increase of 61 from last year. The carers passport scheme formalises 
arrangements made between our employees, their manager and the organisation.   
 

 75% of carers within our workforce are women. This is higher than the national 
average (59%). Overall, 4% of our workforce have identified as working carers. It is 
anticipated that around 12% of our people could be working carers based on 
regional statistics. 
 

 Active steps have been taken to provide support to working carers and will further 
build upon this. Actions to date include the launch of a working carers policy, 
management training, the introduction of a Carers Passport scheme and the 
establishment of a staff network group. We will continue to work with the staff 
network groups to identify further measures and support where required. 
 
Communication campaigns will continue to ensure our people feel confident to 
identify as working carers and are aware of the carers passport scheme. In addition, 
we will also include other support available such as the Working Carers Policy and 
the Working Carers network group.  

 
5.1. Job Application Success Rates  

 
 The overall number of job applications for 2022/23 was 3,719.  This is similar to the 

number of applicants from last year.  
 

 Candidates from an ethnic minority background were more successful in the 
appointment process than their non-ethnic minority counterparts. The top five 
success rates are as follows: Black Caribbean 27%, Other Black 25%, Mixed White 
and Asian 19%, White British 14% and Mixed White and Black African 11%.  

 
 The success rate of disabled people appointed was 13% which is the same as non-

disabled candidates. This is a positive reverse in trend from last year when disabled 
candidates were 12% less successful to be appointed. Additionally, 10% of 
successful candidates preferred not to say in comparison to 25% the previous year. 
This could have an impact either positively or negatively on the overall results for 
disabled candidates. 
 

 Candidates that identified as Prefer to self-describe and Lesbian or Gay were more 
successful than candidates that identified as heterosexual.  

 
 The highest success rate of new starters in 2022/2023 were aged 66+ at 33%. This 

is in keeping with last year and is a reverse in trend from the previous year (when it 
was the age group between 26-35) based on proportionality across all age groups.  

 
 However, during 2022/23, the next highest success rate of new starters was aged 

16-20 at 20% which is in keeping with last year and is a reverse in trend from the 
previous year when no candidates under the age of 20 were appointed.  
 

5.2. Promotion Success Rates  
 

Page 20



 

15 
 

Last year we included, for the second time, insight in relation to promotion success 
rates. We have used this as a baseline for comparable information for this report. We 
will ensure there are no adverse disparities for any protected groups as we monitor 
this on an ongoing basis. The initial findings are as follows: 
 

 Overall, 92 of our people received an increase in pay comprising of change of grade, 
promotion, re-grade and restructure. This equates to around 2.7% of the workforce. 
This is slightly higher than last year when 2.3% of our people received an increase. 
 

 Of these, 3.2% were from an ethnic minority background, this is slightly higher than 
the overall composition of ethnic minority employees at 3%.  
 

 Around 67% of our people promoted identified as female, this is in keeping with the 
overall composition of the workforce and lower than last year when 81% of all 
promoted employees identified as female.  

 
 Around 12% disabled employees were promoted. This is higher than the overall 

make up of disabled employees at 8% and is a 3% increase from the previous year. 
 

 Approximately 38% of employees were aged over 46 years, this is lower when 
compared to the numbers of employees overall aged over 46 years (60%). This is in 
keeping with last year. 
 

 Around 7.6% of our people who declared they were lesbian, gay, bi-sexual or prefer 
to self-describe were promoted during 2022/23. This is a 100% increase from last 
year when 3.8% of our people identifying as LGBTQ+ were promoted. 

 
5.3. Length Of Service  

 
A significant proportion of our people are over 46 years of age and have 25 years or 
more service (17%). A strength echoed in our recent Local Government Association 
Peer Review. However, we are taking steps to strengthen our approach to workforce 
and succession planning with a focus on addressing the challenges of an ageing 
workforce, hard to fill roles, skills gaps, improving diversity, having a flexible and 
agile workforce that supports progression of the talent already within the 
organisation. 
 
 
 

5.4. Take Up Of Training  
 
In January 2022, our new learning platform Flo was launched. This platform has 
been procured and developed to make it inclusive for all our workforce to access in a 
simple and easy way. Content can be in many forms, written, videos, podcast etc all 
with subtitles and aids. Creation of content is also owned and developed by 
everyone in the organisation. This helps strengthen our knowledge management of 
subject matter experts across the council. This is particularly important due to our 
age demographics as previously stated.   
 

Page 21



 

16 
 

 Our data tells us that 75% (2,505) of all our people accessed formal training (that is 
recorded centrally and includes essential e-learning). This is a decrease of 9% from 
the previous year. This data does not capture/include all forms of blended learning 
and development, such as work-based learning. Covid 19 has had a significant 
impact on the delivery of in-person learning.   We are adapting our development offer 
to be more flexible in line with our hybrid working culture. 
 

 Around 78% of our people from an ethnic minority background accounted for staff 
accessing formal training, which is 17% higher than last year.  
 

 Approximately 74% of our people from a White British demographic accessed formal 
training, which is an increase of 9% from last year.  

 
 85% of all disabled employees accessed formal training, which is higher than 

employees that did not have a disability at 76%. This is a reverse in trend from last 
year when it was evenly split.  
 

 Employees that identified as Asexual, lesbian or gay were more like to access formal 
training compared to employees that identified as heterosexual. 
 

 A review of the data tells us that the following age ranges are accessing training 
opportunities, with the highest cohort being age ranges 61-65, 56-60 and 46 - 55 
respectively.  

 
 Employees under the age of 20 are least likely to access formal training.  This may 

be as they are undertaking formal apprenticeship programmes. 
 

 Overall, employees with a protected characteristic are exceeding opportunities to 
access formal training which is extremely positive. 

 
 As part of our new approach, we will continue to encourage a culture of continuous 

learning and development, empower our people to drive their own development, 
providing them with the tools and resources to do so. We will also emphasise the 
value of other forms of learning and development such as shadowing, mentoring, 
reverse mentoring, online resources and structured on-the-job learning.  
 

 We will continue to monitor trends and ensure development opportunities are 
accessible to all.   

 
5.5. Reasons For Leaving  

 
 During 2022/23, 373 of our people left the Council. The main reason for leaving was 

resignation, severance and end of contract. This is in keeping with the previous year.  
 

 Around 7% of our people who left during 2022-2023 had declared a disability, this is 
a decrease of 3% from last year and is 1% higher than the overall make-up of the 
workforce (8%).    

 

Page 22



 

17 
 

 The sex split of leavers is not comparable to the overall composition of the workforce 
with more men leaving at 40% (compared to 37% of workforce). However, this is a 
decrease of 1% from last year. 

 
 Around 4.3% of all leavers identified as lesbian, gay and bi-sexual, this is a slight 

decrease and is slightly higher of the overall make-up of the workforce (3.3%).  
However, there were high levels of prefer not to say at 19% that could impact 
negatively / positively for this protected characteristic group. 

 
 In terms of race, 5.6% of all leavers identified as from an ethnic minority background. 

This is higher than last year when 4.4% of all leavers were from an ethnic minority 
background.  

 
 Our approach to exit interview has been strengthened and now includes leaving 

conversations and a leavers survey. Managers are encouraged to understand our 
people’s reasons for leaving, gather feedback for how their service area can 
improve, and celebrate what the employee has achieved during their time with us. 
We will continue to monitor qualitative leavers survey comments for any specific 
barriers or issues being raised by leavers in relation to protected characteristics. 
 

5.6. Apprenticeship And Graduate Schemes 
 

 During 2022/23 we had a total of 10 graduates employed as part of our graduate 
programme.  
 

 Since the last report, 3 graduates left the programme as they have now secured 
permanent roles within the Council. 
 

 There was no new intake of apprentices for 2022/23. Of the original 12 apprentices, 
6 care leavers remain with us, one care leaver left the programme and another 
apprentice gained permanent employment with us. All are aged under 30. 
 

 In addition, there were 73 of our people undertaking apprentice qualifications during 
this period.  
 

5.7. Employee Relation cases 
 
During 2022-2023 there were 422 employee relation cases relating to formal 
performance management (14), discipline (40), grievance (19) and absence 
management (349). This accounts for 12% of our workforce. The cases have been 
analysed in relation to protected characteristics. We looked at the four key areas and 
the following are the findings: 
 
Performance Management  

 
 71% of our performance management cases were women. This is slightly higher 

when compared to the sex split of the workforce with men. 
 

 35% of these declared a disability.  
 

Page 23



 

18 
 

 7% identified as being from an ethnic minority background. 
 

 The age groups 51 – 60 account for 43% of all performance management cases. 
 

Discipline 
 
 Based on our workforce profile, men were more likely to be subject to the 

disciplinary process (55%). This is lower than last year when it was 67%. This 
has been analysed further by our Employee Relations team and there is no 
rationale as to why men accounted for more disciplinary cases.  
 

 The age group 51 – 55 accounted for 37% of overall disciplinary cases. 
 
 Of those employees that declared a disability (17%), none of disciplinary cases 

were as a direct result of an employee’s disability. 
 

Attendance Management  
 
 Around 52% of employees between the age groups 51- 55, 56 - 60 and 61 – 65+ 

account for people within the attendance management process. This is a 
decrease of 4% from last year.  

 
 Approximately 13% employees declared a disability. This is higher than the 

overall headcount of disabled employees at 8% and is 1% higher than last year. 
 
Grievances 
 
 52% of grievances were submitted by female staff.  

 
 21% of all grievances were made by disabled staff. 

 
 5% were accounted for staff from an ethnic minority.  

 
 5% of staff identified as lesbian or gay. 

 
 The age groups 31 – 35 and 51 – 55 accounted for 42% of all grievances. 

 
 One grievance related to a person’s hidden disability which was later withdrawn 

by the employee. 
 

 The data/numbers held in respect of reported cases of bullying and harassment 
is too small upon which to draw statistically significant inferences. However, the 
Council will continue to take any report of bullying and harassment very seriously 
and will take action as appropriate. Any discrimination or bullying and harassment 
on the basis of a protected characteristic will not be tolerated.  
 
 

5.8. Final Comments and Next Steps 
 

Page 24



 

19 
 

In conclusion, our workforce demographic has remained consistent over the last 
three years. We know where the gaps are, and this report and associated action plan 
(Appendix One) will contribute to the further development of the Council’s workforce 
plans which support our wider people strategy.  This will ensure that we have a 
diverse, engaged, and skilled workforce who deliver outcomes for Wirral residents 
and are representative of the communities that we serve.  

Page 25



 

20 
 

Appendix One: Equality Improvement: Summary action plan 
 
Action Plan 2023 to 2025 
 

Action Target date  Owner 

To develop and introduce a Talent strategy and action plan which supports the 
wider council people strategy and takes due regard to the workforce equality 
data and targets.  Key themes will include talent attraction, development and 
retention. 

Summer 
2023 

Talent and Resourcing 

Develop a Workforce Inclusion Strategy based on the outcome of the published 
People Strategy and emerging Council Corporate Equality Plan. 

April 2024 Learning & Inclusion  

To deliver a Race Equality training programme with our partners in the Liverpool 
City Region. 

April 2025 Learning & Inclusion  

Review and report on the Employee survey results summer 2023 against 
captured protected characteristics and identify trends and improvement areas. 

April 2024 Learning & Inclusion 

In support of our Talent Strategy, strengthen our approach to workforce planning 
to address the challenges of an aging workforce, hard to fill roles, skills gaps, 
improving diversity and supports inclusive talent progression within the Council. 

April 2025 HR and OD 

Continue to strengthen our engagement approaches with our inclusion forum 
and staff network groups via co-design and development.  

Ongoing Learning & Inclusion 

Implement specific learning programmes for Managers to reduce unconscious 
bias and promote the value of good ED&I practices. 

April 2024 Learning & Inclusion 

P
age 26



 

21 
 

Appendix Two : Equality Improvement: Summary action plan 
Equal Pay Statement  
 
Employers must ensure men and women are treated equally in the terms and 
conditions of their employment contract including pay, if they are employed to do: 
 

 'like work' - work that is the same or broadly similar 

 work rated as equivalent under a job evaluation study 

 work found to be of equal value in terms of effort, skill or decision 
making. 

The equal terms can cover all aspects of pay and benefits, including: 

 basic pay 

 overtime rates 

 performance related benefits 

 hours of work 

 access to pension schemes 

 non-monetary terms 

 annual leave entitlements. 
 
The Pay Policy for The Pay Policy is reviewed annually and approved by Council. 
The Pay Policy for 2022/23 was presented to Policy and Resources Committee on 
15 February 2023 and Full Council on 20 March 2023. Wirral Council is a Foundation 
Living Wage Employer and with effect from 1 April 2023 we will pay the revised 
national Living Wage of £10.90 per hour. 
 
The Local Government Transparency Code 2014 under the Department for 
Communities and Local Government requires that all local authorities publish certain 
information related to the organisation, salaries and fraud including senior salaries 
over £50,000.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 27



 

22 
 

2. Appendix Three: Workforce Profile: Gender pay gap reporting – 31 March 
2023  

 
Wirral Council is required by law (The Equality Act 2010 (Specific Duties and Public 
Authorities) Regulations 2017) to publish an annual gender pay gap report.  
 
What is a gender pay gap? 
The gender pay gap shows the average difference between the earnings of women 
and men. It has a number of contributory factors, most of which are more about the 
kinds of industries and jobs open to women than about the ways in which men and 
women are paid. 
 
Just because there is a gender pay gap does not make it unlawful. Having a gender 
pay gap does not mean the council is discriminating against women. A gender pay 
gap is not solely the result of pay practices. It is about much broader influences. 
Gender pay gaps are the outcome of economic, cultural, societal and educational 
factors. 
 
Gender pay is not about equal pay. Unequal pay means that individual women and 
men are not getting equal pay for doing equal work.  
 
Reporting Requirements 
The report is in relation to a snapshot of the workforce in scope as at 31st March 
2023 in line with the legislative reporting requirements. The scope of the council’s 
report includes all employees (excluding schools) who are in receipt of base pay and 
allowances at this date. 

The council must report on and publish the mean and median pay gaps and pay 
quartiles. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 28



 

23 
 

Appendix Four: references list 
 

 Census 2021 

 Sexual orientation, UK - Office for National Statistics (ons.gov.uk) 

 Wirral Intelligence hub 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 29

https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/culturalidentity/sexuality/bulletins/sexualidentityuk/2019


This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

  

 

SENIOR OFFICER APPOINTMENTS AND STAFFING SUB-COMMITTEE 

Tuesday 5 December 2023 
 

REPORT TITLE: GENDER PAY GAP REPORT 

REPORT OF: DIRECTOR OF LAW AND GOVERNANCE 

 
 
REPORT SUMMARY 
 
In line with the Equality Act 2010 (the Act), the purpose of the Council’s Gender Pay Gap 
Report is to provide transparency with regard to the average difference between earnings of 
women and men. 
 
The report must be published by 31 March each year, reflecting the gender pay gap as at 
March the previous year. This report reflects the position as at March 2023. 
 
The annual Gender Pay Gap report supports the effective delivery of the Wirral Plan 2021-
2026 by ensuring the Council has a fair and equitable approach to pay for all its employees. 
The Council’s employees are here to help make the Council’s ambitions a reality, to 
achieve the goals and priorities set out in the Wirral Plan. 
 
This report does not require a key decision, the matter affects all wards in the borough.  
 
RECOMMENDATION/S 
 
The Senior Officer Appointment and Staffing Sub-Committee is recommended to note and 
endorse the publication of the Gender Pay Gap report. 

 

Page 31

Agenda Item 7



 

 

 
SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 

1.0 REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S 
 

1.1 The Council is required by law (The Equality Act 2010 (Specific Duties and Public 
Authorities) Regulations 2017) to publish an annual gender pay gap report. 

 
 

2.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
 

2.1 No other options were considered as the Gender Pay Gap report is a requirement of 
the Equality Act 2010. 
 

3.0 BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 

3.1 Gender pay is not about equal pay. Unequal pay means that individual women and 
men are not getting equal pay for doing equal work. The gender pay gap shows the 
average difference between the earnings of women and men. It has a number of 
contributory factors, most of which are more about the kinds of industries and jobs 
open to women than about the ways in which men and women are paid. 

 
3.2 Just because there is a gender pay gap does not make it unlawful. Having a gender 

pay gap does not mean the Council is discriminating in relation to gender pay. 
 
3.3 A gender pay gap is not solely the result of pay practices. It is about much broader 

influences. Gender pay gaps are the outcome of economic, cultural, social and 
educational factors. 

 

3.4 The Council's median gender pay gap for 2023 was 6.48% which compared 
favourably to the national average of 14.3% for other public sector organisations. 
The median gender pay gap has increased from 5.01% in 2022 whilst the mean 
gender pay gap also increased slightly from 4.4% to 4.65%.  

 
3.5 The gender profile has remained steady for the fifth consecutive year, 64% female 

and 36% male. There was no significant shift in the gender quartile profiles and 
there was a continued positive trend of an increase in the number of females in both 
the upper mid and upper quartiles. The percentage of full-time female workers 
increased for the second year from 34.68% to 35.29%. 

 

3.6 As a council we work closely with our established Staff Inclusion Forum and 
employee network groups who provide important feedback to us about general and 
specific issues and are instrumental in developing and implementing strategies to 
eliminate discrimination and promote equality of opportunity within the Council.  
Many of these groups have specific identification with protected characteristics but 
also a number relate to areas that impact different groups of the workforce ability to 
be at work such as our carers network, menopause groups etc. 

3.7 The Council has continued to develop and promote a range of workforce strategies, 
including hybrid working, health and wellbeing initiatives and talent attraction and 

Page 32



 

 

management, for example, Apprenticeships, Traineeships, Graduate Schemes have 
once again featured as part of the wider workforce plan with targeted recruitment 
campaigns. These strategies contribute towards addressing the gender pay gap by 
enabling the Council to recruit and retain talent. We will continue to strengthen our 
workforce planning activity through the lens of our workforce profile, workforce 
monitoring and the continued development of our talent Strategy.  

 
4.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

 
4.1  There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. 
 
 
5.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
5.1  The Council is required by law (The Equality Act 2010 (Specific Duties and Public 

Authorities) Regulations 2017) to publish an annual gender pay gap report by 31 
March. 

 
 
6.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: STAFFING, ICT AND ASSETS 
 
6.1  There are no direct resource implications arising from this report. 
 
7.0 RELEVANT RISKS  
 
7.1 The Council is required to prepare and publish an annual Gender Pay Gap Report 

for 2023 by 31 March 2024.  
 
7.2 The Council's current gender pay gap compares favourably to the national averages 

and other public sector organisations. The Council will continue to analyse and 
compare the outcomes of the gender pay gap annually and consider any actions that 
may address the gap. 

 
 

8.0 ENGAGEMENT/CONSULTATION  
 
8.1 The Trade Unions have been consulted and note the Gender Pay Gap Report 2023. 
 

 
9.0 EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
9.1 Wirral Council has a legal requirement to make sure its policies, and the way it 

carries out its work, do not discriminate against anyone. An Equality Impact 
Assessment is a tool to help council services identify steps they can take to ensure 
equality for anyone who might be affected by a particular policy, decision or activity. 

 
9.2 Based on the outcomes of the Gender Pay Gap report 2023, the Council will 

undertake further analysis and benchmarking to identify any actions that may 
address the pay gap differential. 

 

Page 33



 

 

 
10.0  ENVIRONMENT AND CLIMATE IMPLICATIONS 
 
10.1 The content and recommendations contained within this report are expected to have 

no impact on emissions of greenhouse gases. 
 
 
11.0    COMMUNITY WEALTH BUILDING IMPLICATIONS 
 
11.1    The gender pay gap compares favourably to the national averages and other public           

sector organisations which is favourable to the local economy. 
 

 
 

REPORT AUTHOR: Tony Williams,  
  (Tony Williams) 
  telephone:   
  email:  tonywilliams@wirral.gov.uk, andreawilliams@wirral.gov.uk 
 
APPENDICES 
 
Appendix 1 Gender Pay Gap Report 2023 
 
TERMS OF REFERENCE 
 
The matter is being considered by the Senior Officer Appointment and Staffing Sub-
Committee in accordance with section 1.5(a) of the Terms of Reference ‘A Sub-Committee 
of members of the Policy and Resources, with delegated authority to recommend or make 
appointments and related matters in respect of chief officers, as set out at Part 4(7) of the 
Constitution, together with oversight of employment policies, terms and conditions.’ 
 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
The Equality Act 2010 (Gender Pay Gap Information) Regulations 2017  
The Gender Pay Gap 2021 
 
SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years) 

Council Meeting  Date 

Senior Officer and Staffing Appointments Sub-Committee 
Senior Officer and Staffing Appointments Sub-Committee 
Policy & Resource Committee 
Employment and Appointments Committee 
Employment and Appointments Committee 
 

15 March 2023 
25 March 2022 
17 March 2021 
3 March 2020 
5 March 2019 
 

 
 

Page 34



  

 
1 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Gender Pay Gap Report 

Workforce Data Snapshot at March 2023 
Published March 2024 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Page 35



2 
 

Gender Pay Gap Report at March 2023 
 
Wirral Council is required by law (The Equality Act 2010 (Specific Duties and Public 
Authorities) Regulations 2017) to publish an annual gender pay gap report.  
 
What is a gender pay gap? 
 
The gender pay gap shows the average difference between the earnings of women and men. 
It has a number of contributory factors, most of which are more about the kinds of industries 
and jobs open to women than about the ways in which men and women are paid. 
 
Having a gender pay gap is not unlawful and does not mean the Council is discriminating 
against women. A gender pay gap is not solely the result of pay practices. It is about much 
broader influences. Gender pay gaps are the outcome of economic, cultural, societal and 
educational factors. 
 
Gender pay is not about equal pay. Unequal pay means that individual women and men are 
not getting equal pay for doing equal work. 

Reporting Requirements 

This report is in relation to a snapshot of the workforce in scope as at 31st March 2023 in line 
with the legislative reporting requirements. The scope of the Council’s report includes all 
employees (excluding schools) who are in receipt of base pay and allowances at this date. 

The Council must report on and publish the mean and median pay gaps and pay quartiles. 

The Council’s workforce is predominantly female: 

 

 

Female: 2307                       Male:  1309  Total: 3616 

 

 64% 36% 

Page 36



3 
 

 

The Gender Pay Gap for Wirral Council is: 

Gender Gap % Male Rate Female Rate Council Rate 

The mean gender pay gap 4.65 £17.89 £17.06 £17.48 

The median gender pay gap 6.48 £16.15 £15.10 £15.60 

The mean gender bonus gap 0 N/A N/A N/A 

The median gender bonus gap 0 N/A N/A N/A 

 
The mean gender pay gap is the average gap across all staff in scope.  
On average men earn 4.65% more than women. 
 

 

The median gender pay gap is the middle rate of all hourly rates in scope.  
The mid-rate for men is 6.48% higher than that of women.  
 

 
 
 

Page 37



4 
 

 

 

The 2022 and 2023 pay quartiles by gender: 

 
 

Quartiles are defined by dividing the workforce into 4 equal sized groups, then split by 
gender. 

The figures set out above have been calculated using the standard methodologies used in 
the Equality Act 2010 (Gender Pay Gap Information) Regulations 2017. 

Comparison with Wirral Council’s 2022 Gender Pay Gap  

The mean gender pay gap (GPG) of 2023 has increased marginally from 4.47% in 2022 to 
4.65%, whilst the median GPG has also increased from 5.01% to 6.48%. 

The gender profile remained steady for the sixth consecutive year.  
There were no significant shifts in the quartile profiles. The transfer of employees from Wirral 
Evolutions back into the Council in October 2022 did have a slight impact causing an 
increase in the number of females in the lower quartile (1.23%) and mid lower quartile 
(0.44%). 
 
However, there continues to be an upward trend for females working full time: the 
percentage of females working full time has increased from 34.7% in 2022 to 35.3% in 2023. 
The flexibility of hybrid working is likely a contributing factor to this trend.  
 
Of the new employees joining Wirral in 22/23, 62% were female, 30% of which joined on a 
part-time basis. Only 25% of the male new starters joined on a part-time basis. 

Page 38



5 
 

 

 

What are the contributing factors to Wirral Council’s Gender Pay Gap? 

Workforce Gender Profile  

The gender profile of Wirral Council employees being paid in March 2023 was virtually 
unchanged from 2022 with a predominantly female workforce, 64% female and 36% male.  

Across the UK economy as a whole, men are more likely than women to be in senior roles 
(especially very senior roles at the top of organisations). In Wirral, the top quartile roles are 
occupied by more women (59%) than men (41%), however there are also a higher number of 
women (70.7%) than men (29.3%) in the lower quartile. 

The gender profile of senior managers paid in March 2023 increased slightly for females: 
March 2022, 60%, to 62%, March 2023, and decreased slightly for males: March 2022, 40%, 
to March 2023, 38%. 

 
Working Arrangements 
 
Wirral has a variety of flexible work options, e.g. full-time, part-time, term-time, seasonal, 
providing a number of working arrangements for individuals to choose from that fit into their 
work-life balance. 
 
It is acknowledged that females are traditionally viewed as the primary carers meaning that 
whilst these opportunities are available to everyone employed, these employment options 
still tend to attract and retain more women than men.   

 
Since Wirral has a number of roles falling into the lower quartile with reduced work hours to 
accommodate work-life balance arrangements, this influences the higher proportion of 
women in lower quartile job roles. Of the lower quartile figure, 70.69% are female compared 
to 29.31% males. 
 
2023 Part-Time v Full-Time 
 

Page 39



6 
 

 
 
 

 

Wirral also has a significantly higher number of women working term time or reduced 
working weeks compared with men. Based on the definition of the calculation of the rate of 
pay, this reduces the hourly rate and therefore has an impact on the pay gap. 
 

 Term Time  

Gender  2022 2023 

Female  9.2% 8.8% 

Male  2.7% 2.83%  

 

Premium Payments 

Premium payments include enhanced rates for unsocial hours and weekend working. These 
are contractual and are generally paid to lower paid employees thus enhancing their rate. 
There has been a decrease in the percentage of females paid these enhancements, from 
11.7% in March 2022 to 10.45% in March 2023. However, the percentage of males also 
decreased from 16.2% in March 2022 to 14.9% in March 2023. The decrease of both 
females and males receiving premium payments is mainly due to the reduction in the 
number of Leisure establishments.  
 
 

How does Wirral Council's gender pay gap compare with that of other organisations?  

The vast majority of organisations have a gender pay gap, Wirral's gap continues to compare 
favourably to the national average and other public sector organisations. 

 

  National Average *ASHE whole sector 

Page 40



7 
 

  Wirral 
Council 

2023 

2023 2022 2021 
 

Median 
gender 
pay gap 

6.48% 14.3% 14.4% 15.4% 

 
*Annual Survey of Hours and Earnings (ASHE) by the Office for National Statistics (ONS). 
Snapshot in April of the relevant year.  
NB the 14.9% ONS figure published in 2022 was incorrect, they have now published the 
correct figure of 14.4%. 
 

 

 

 

 
Contributing factors that lessen Wirral’s gap compared to the national picture are: 
 
Wirral’s adoption of the Foundation Living Wage has resulted in the lower quartile rates 
being comparatively higher than national rates.   
 
It is acknowledged that females are traditionally viewed as the primary carers. Wirral has a 
range of flexible working arrangements, which have been refreshed during 2023, including 
hybrid working and policies such as work-life balance, family-friendly, the employment break 
scheme and well-being initiatives that support women with families to work and progress 
their careers.  
 
The Council has a fair and equitable process to ensure that jobs of equal value are graded 
consistently, compared to the private sector where salary packages can be individually 
negotiated and pay can vary according to performance. In addition, the Council publishes a 
Pay Policy Statement annually to provide transparency with regard to the Council’s 
approach to setting pay. 
 
 
Summary 
 
Wirral’s 2023 median gender pay gap has increased from 5.01% to 6.48. The mean gender 
pay gap in 2023 has also increased slightly from 4.47% to 4.65%.  
  
The gender profile remained steady for the fifth consecutive year. There were no notable 
percentage shifts across the quartiles, which saw a slight increase in the number of females 
in the lower quartile and positively an increase in the upper mid and upper quartiles. 
The percentage of full-time female workers increased for the second year from 34.68% to 
35.29%. 
 
In a time of continued significant change, the Council has developed and promoted a range 
of workforce strategies, including new ways of working, health and wellbeing initiatives, a 
refreshed People Strategy and the development of a Talent Strategy. The Talent Strategy 
has three themes, that when delivered together will help us attract, develop and retain talent 
so we - have the right people, with the right skills, attitudes and behaviours at the right time 

Page 41



8 
 

to meet our challenges and make the most of the opportunities we will face over the coming 
years. The strategy will contribute towards addressing the gender pay gap by recognising 
that talent is everywhere in the organisation and promoting an inclusive approach to talent 
development where, based on the needs of services, people will have equal opportunity to 
think, create, learn, grow, network, progress and thrive. We will continue to strengthen our 
workforce planning activity through the lens of our workforce profile, workforce monitoring 
and engagement with the workforce. 
 
Aa a council we work closely with our established Staff Inclusion Forum and employee 
network groups who provide important feedback to us about general and specific issues and 
are instrumental in developing and implementing strategies to eliminate discrimination and 
promote equality of opportunity within the Council. Many of these groups have specific 
identification with protected characteristics but also a number relate to areas that impact 
different groups of the workforce ability to be at work such as our carers network, 
menopause groups etc.  
 
Alongside our latest Gender Pay Gap Report, we have prioritised the publication of our 
Workforce Monitoring Report at the same time, which sets out how we will ensure equality 
and fairness for everyone who works for Wirral Council. It is important that we adopt the 
rigour of our Gender Pay Gap Reporting to our wider equality objectives to ensure that all 
colleagues, no matter how they identify or what their circumstances are, experience fair 
treatment, pay and opportunities. 
 
The Council acknowledges that future organisational change may impact on the profile of the 
workforce. As we deliver the Wirral Plan, supported by our People and Talent Strategy, we 
will monitor the impact of any change on our gender pay gap. 

As a major anchor employer in the area, the Council recognises the importance of being a 
place leader for diversity, fairness and inclusion. As such the Council, as part of its Talent 
Strategy, is creating a range of talent pipelines that support, foster and grow a diverse and 
inclusive work environment, and help residents to access job opportunities at Wirral. The 
talent pipelines will support local job seekers who may face challenges getting into 
employment including unemployed residents, young people who are not in employment or 
education, care leavers and vulnerable groups such as individuals who are neurodiverse or 
have learning difficulties. The impact on the gender pay gap will be monitored as the talent 
pipelines develop. 

 

 
 
 
 

Page 42



Document is Restricted

Page 43

Agenda Item 9
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 51

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1,3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 53

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1,3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 57

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1,3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 61

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1,3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 63

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1,3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 67

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1,3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 73

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1,3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 75

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1,3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Senior Officer and Appointment Staffing Sub-Committee – Terms of Reference 
 
(a) A Sub-Committee of members of the Policy and Resources, with delegated 

authority to recommend or make appointments and related matters in respect 
of chief officers and deputy chief officers, as set out at Part 4(7) of the 
Constitution, together with oversight of employment policies, terms and 
conditions. 
 

(b)  The Sub-Committee will not be appointed in accordance with the political 
balance rules (minute N of 2020/21 refers) but will consist of:  

(i)  the Leader (Chair of Policy & Resources Committee), or in their absence 
the Deputy Leader (Vice-Chair), who shall chair the Sub-Committee;  

(ii)  a member from each of the other Political Groups represented on the 
Policy & Resources Committee; and  

(iii) the Chair, or in their absence the Vice-Chair, of the Policy & Services 
Committee with terms of reference most closely associated with the post 
concerned (or if that committee concerned is deemed to be the Policy & 
Resources Committee then the Deputy Leader (Vice-Chair). 

 
 

Page 77

Agenda Annex



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 MINUTES
	6 Workforce Equality Report 2023
	Appendix 1 - Workforce Equality report 2022/23

	7 Gender Pay Gap Report 2023
	Appendix 1 - Gender Pay Gap Report 2023

	9 CHIEF OFFICER STRUCTURE UPDATE REPORT
	Enc. 2 for CHIEF OFFICER STRUCTURE UPDATE REPORT
	Enc. 3 for CHIEF OFFICER STRUCTURE UPDATE REPORT
	Enc. 4 for CHIEF OFFICER STRUCTURE UPDATE REPORT
	Enc. 5 for CHIEF OFFICER STRUCTURE UPDATE REPORT
	Enc. 6 for CHIEF OFFICER STRUCTURE UPDATE REPORT
	Enc. 7 for CHIEF OFFICER STRUCTURE UPDATE REPORT
	Enc. 8 for CHIEF OFFICER STRUCTURE UPDATE REPORT
	Enc. 9 for CHIEF OFFICER STRUCTURE UPDATE REPORT

	 Senior Officer and Appointments Staffing Sub-Committee Terms of Reference

